BRIDGEMARK GROUP SECURITIES LITIGATION

ADMINISTRATION PLAN FOR CONSULTANT SETTLEMENTS

Contents

DEFINITIONS	1
OBJECTIVE	8
ELIGIBILITY TO CLAIM	8
MAKING A CLAIM	9
OPTING OUT	9
CLAIMS VERIFICATION	11
CLAIMS PROCESSING RULES	122
CALCULATION OF NOTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS	13
COMPLETION OF CLAIMS & IRREGULAR CLAIMS	15
CLAIMS PROCESSING TIMELINE & NOTICE TO CLAIMANTS OF INITIAL DETERMINATIONS	15
REQUESTING RECONSIDERATION OF AN INITIAL DETERMINATION	16
CALCULATION OF COMPENSATION AMOUNT	17
FRAUDULENT CLAIMS	19
ADDITIONAL RULES	19

This Consultant Settlement Administration Plan ("Consultant Plan" or "Plan") should be read alongside the settlement approval orders from the Supreme Court of British Columbia in *Tietz et al. v. BridgeMark Financial Corp. et al.*, BCSC Action No. S-197731 ("Class Action"). These orders, approving "Consultant Settlements" and "Issuer Settlements," both as defined below, are available at www.bridgemarkclassaction.com.

DEFINITIONS

- 1. The following definitions apply to this Plan, in addition to the terms defined above:
 - a. "Acquisition Expense" means the total amount paid by a Claimant, including brokerage commissions, to acquire Eligible Shares;

- b. "Administration Expenses" means all fees, disbursements, expenses, costs, taxes and other amounts reasonably incurred and payable for the implementation and administration of the Settlements, including fees, disbursements and taxes, if any, paid to the Administrator, costs incurred by the Administrator for printing and delivering notice, establishing and maintaining an online claims portal, and any other expenses of the Administrator approved by the Court to be paid from the Consultant Settlements Fund;
- c. "Administrator" means Analytics Consulting LLC, the third-party professional firm, including its employees, appointed by the Court to administer this Plan;
- d. "Administrator's Initial Determination" means the Administrator's initial determination about a Claimant's Authorized Claimant status, the allowance or disallowance of their Claim, in whole or part, their Notional Entitlement(s) and Net Issuer Settlement Claim, as applicable, and any deficiencies in the Claim or supporting documents that the Claimant is required to remedy;
- e. "Authorized Claimant" means a Claimant who has submitted a Claim which has been approved for compensation by the Administrator, or who has been deemed to have made a Claim, under the terms of this Plan;
- f. "Claim" means a completed claim, including all required supporting documents, submitted through the Administrators' electronic claims portal, or a deemed claim in respect of a Net Issuer Settlement Claim, which constitutes a Claimant's claim for compensation under this Plan;
- g. "Claimant" means a Class Member who purchased Eligible Shares and

submits a properly completed Claim to the Administrator on or before the Claims Bar Deadline, or who is deemed to have made a Claim in respect of a Net Issuer Settlement Claim;

- h. "Claims Bar Deadline" means February 12, 2026, the date by which Claimants must submit a completed Claim and all required supporting documentation to the Administrator, or such other date as may be set by the Court subsequent to the Approval Order;
- i. "Class Counsel" means Bennett Mounteer LLP and CFM Lawyers LLP;
- j. "Class Counsel Fees" means the fees, disbursements, costs, interest, and other applicable taxes or charges of Class Counsel, as approved by the Court;
- k. "Class Member" means someone who purchased Eligible Shares in an Issuer and is not an Excluded Person;
- "Consultant Settlements" means the following settlements between the Plaintiffs in the Class Action and the following Defendants described or formerly described in the pleadings as "Purported Consultants":
 - 1. the settlement with Anthony Jackson, BridgeMark Financial Corp. and Jackson & Company Professional Corp., approved by order of the Court on May 15, 2024 ("Jackson Group settlement"), for \$1,650,000 in settlement proceeds;
 - 2. the settlement with Albert Kenneth Tollstam, Tollstam & Company Chartered Accountants, Ryan Peter Venier, Altitude Marketing Corp., Tara Haddad, Saiya Capital Corporation, Abeir Haddad and Tryton Financial Corp., approved by order of the Court on May 15, 2024 ("Jackson Family settlement"), for \$100,000

- in settlement proceeds;
- 3. the settlement with Tavistock Capital Corp. and Robert Lawrence, approved by order of the Court on November 6, 2024 ("Tavistock-Lawrence settlement"), for \$187,500 in settlement proceeds;
- 4. the settlement with Jason C. Shull, Platinum Capital Corp., and 658111 BC Ltd. approved by order of the Court on November 6, 2024 ("Shull Group settlement"), for \$33,000 in settlement proceeds; and
- 5. the settlement with Justin Edar Liu, Lukor Capital Corp., Asiatic Management Consultants Ltd. (Nev.), Asiatic Management Consultants Ltd. (B.C.), Yari Alexander Nieken, David Greenway and 1113300 B.C. Ltd., approved by order of the Court on February 20, 2025 ("Liu Group settlement"), for \$1,880,000 in settlement proceeds.
- m. "Consultant Settlements Fund" means the proceeds of all Consultant Settlements.
- n. "Court" means the Supreme Court of British Columbia, Canada;
- o. "Disposition Proceeds" means the total proceeds paid to a Claimant, without deducting any commissions paid in respect of dispositions, in consideration of the sale of all Eligible Shares in an Issuer; provided, however, that for Eligible Shares in an Issuer that a Claimant still holds when they submit their Claim, they will be deemed to have been disposed of at a price equal to the unadjusted ten (10) trading day volume weighted average closing price for that Issuer's shares on the CSE immediately either after November 26, 2018 or during the Resumption of Trading Period, as applicable;

p. "Eligible Shares" means shares in an Issuer, acquired during the class period corresponding to that Issuer as set out in **Table 1.0** below, and includes shares of that Issuer bought on a Canadian or foreign exchange, alternative trading system or over-the-counter market:

Table 1.0

Issuer	Class Period
Kootenay Zinc Corp. ¹	January 30, 2018, to and including November 26, 2018
Affinor Growers Inc.	March 5, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
Green 2 Blue Energy Corp. ²	April 12, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
Beleave Inc.	April 24, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
Marapharm Ventures Inc. ³	May 17, 2018, to and including November 26, 2018
Cryptobloc Technologies Corp. ⁴	May 18, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
BLOK Technologies Inc.	June 1, 2018, to and including November 26, 2018
PreveCeutical Medical Inc.	April 9, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
Speakeasy Cannabis Club Ltd.	June 29, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018
New Point Exploration Corp. ⁵	July 25, 2018 to and including November 26, 2018

¹ Later called Peakbirch Logic Inc., now called Peakbirch Commerce Inc.

² Later called G2 Technologies Corp., now called G2 Energy Corp.

³ Later called Liht Cannabis Corp., now called Fiore Cannabis Ltd.

⁴ Now called Cryptoblox Technologies Inc.

⁵ Later called KOPR Point Ventures Inc., Bam Bam Resources Corp., Majuba Hill Copper Corp., and now Giant Mining Corp.

- q. **Excluded Person(s)**" means the past and present defendants in the Class Action and any other person or entity referred to in paragraph 2 (a) to (d) of the Order made July 2, 2024, certifying the Class Action.
- r. "FIFO" means the principle of "first-in-first-out", under which shares are deemed to be sold in the same order that they were purchased (i.e. the first shares purchased are deemed to be the first shares sold);
- s. "**Issuer**" means an issuer listed in Table 1.0, including, where applicable, as later known by another name;
- t. "Issuer Settlement" means any of the following settlements between Plaintiffs in the Class Action and the following Defendants described in the pleadings as "Issuers" and their named officers and directors:
 - 1. the settlement with Beleave Inc. ("**Beleave**"), approved by order of the Court on December 14, 2020;
 - 2. the settlement with PreveCeutical Medical Inc. ("**PreveCeutical**"), approved by order of the Court on April 4, 2022;
 - 3. the settlement with Affinor Growers Inc. ("**Affinor**"), approved by order of the Court on October 6, 2023; and
 - 4. the settlement with Kootenay Zinc Corp.("**Kootena**y") approved by order of the Court on August 24, 2024;
- u. "Issuer Settlement Payment" means an amount that has been paid, or has been found by the Administrator to be payable, under an Issuer Settlement, and includes amounts payable under this Plan from funds remaining in the Issuer Settlements.
- v. "Net Loss" means that the Claimant's total Disposition Proceeds for all

- Eligible Shares in an Issuer are less than the Claimant's total Acquisition Expense for all Eligible Shares in that same Issuer;
- w. "Net Consultant Settlements Fund" means the portion of the Consultant Settlements Fund remaining after payment of Administration Expenses, Class Counsel Fees and any other charge approved by the Court, and includes the after-tax amount of accrued interest income, if any;
- x. "Net Issuer Settlement Claim" means the notional entitlement for a claim approved under an Issuer Settlement less the Issuer Settlement Payment made for that claim, or the Notional Entitlement for Eligible Shares approved under this Plan less payment from funds remaining in the Issuer Settlement, if any, applicable to those Eligible Shares pursuant to the terms of this Plan;
- y. "Notional Entitlement" means an Authorized Claimant's damages for losses suffered from the acquisition of Eligible Shares in an Issuer as calculated under the formulae in Part VIII;
- z. "Plan Approval Order" means the Order of the Court approving this Plan;
- aa."**Primary CS Payment Fund**" means an amount equal to 94.273471% of the Net Consultants Settlement Fund;
- bb. "Remaining CS Payment Fund" means the Net Consultant Settlements
 Fund less the Primary CS Payment Fund;
- cc. "Resumption of Trading Period" means, where an Issuer's shares could not be traded on the CSE during the ten (10) trading days after November 26, 2018, the next ten (10) consecutive trading days where the Issuer's shares could be traded on the CSE, as set out in Table 2.0 below:

Table 2.0

Issuer	Resumption of Trading Period
Cryptobloc Technologies Corp.	December 11, 2018 to and including December 24, 2018
New Point Exploration Corp.	January 10, 2019 to and including January 23, 2019

OBJECTIVE

2. This Plan aims to distribute the Net Consultant Settlements Fund among Authorized Claimants proportionately, economically, and efficiently, considering Issuer Settlements and avoiding double compensation and overcompensation.

ELIGIBILITY TO CLAIM

- 3. All Class Members are eligible to claim compensation for the losses suffered from their acquisition of Eligible Shares in an amount determined under this Plan, except:
 - a. Class Members whose claims were rejected in an Issuer Settlement are not eligible to claim compensation for their shares in that Issuer; and
 - b. Class Members who have received an Issuer Settlement Payment from the Issuer Settlement, unless they fall within paragraph 4 below, are not eligible to claim compensation for their shares in that Issuer.
- 4. Class Members who have received or will receive an Issuer Settlement Payment from the Issuer Settlement for Affinor, PreveCeutical, or Kootenay but whose Notional Entitlements under those settlements are not paid in full are automatically deemed to have made a Claim under this Plan in the amount of their Net Issuer

Settlement Claim, if any, unless they opt out pursuant to Part V below. Those Class Members are not eligible to claim additional compensation for their shares in PreveCeutical, Affinor or Kootenay, as applicable.

5. Class members who acquired Eligible Shares in Beleave, Affinor, PreveCeutical or Kootenay but did NOT claim in the applicable Issuer Settlement administration are entitled to claim compensation for their Eligible Shares under this Plan.

MAKING A CLAIM

- 6. To claim compensation from the Net Consultant Settlements Fund, Class Members must complete a Claim by the Claims Bar Deadline, unless they are deemed to make a Net Issuer Settlement Claim pursuant to paragraph 4, in which case they do not have to complete a Claim.
- 7. Claims received by the Administrator after the Claims Bar Deadline will not be considered and accepted for payment by the Administrator, and no payment will be made under this Plan for such Claims, unless Class Counsel and the Administrator consider it appropriate to do so under paragraph 47.

OPTING OUT

- 8. Class Members who do not wish to participate in or be bound by the Consultant Settlements may opt out of those Settlements and the Class Action by notifying Class Counsel in writing, no later than the Claims Bar Deadline, to mm@hbmlaw.com, that they wish to opt out of the Consultant Settlements and the Class Action.
- 9. An opt-out notification will not be valid unless it contains all the information in paragraph 10 below and, if requested by Class Counsel, supported by additional documents under paragraph 11.

- 10. An opt-out notification must:
 - a. state the intention of the Class Member or a person authorized to bind the Class Member to opt out of the Action;
 - b. state which Issuer(s) the Class Member purchased Eligible Shares in;
 - c. state the number of shares of that Issuer(s) held at the close of trade on the beginning and end dates of the corresponding class period (see definition of Eligible Shares for the class period corresponding to each Issuer);
 - d. state the number of Eligible Shares bought and sold during the class period corresponding to that Issuer(s);
 - e. state the number of Eligible Shares sold after November 26, 2018, and up to the date of the request to opt-out;
 - f. contain contact information for the Class Member, including name, address, telephone number and e-mail address; and
 - g. contain such other information as the Court may require.
- 11. Class Counsel may request that any Class Member who has delivered an opt-out notification provide additional supporting documents as may be needed to evidence their trading in Eligible Shares, including trade confirmations, brokerage statements or other records acceptable to Class Counsel, and may request information from the Administrator about compensation paid or payable under an Issuer Settlement to any Class Member who has delivered an opt-out notification.
- 12. Class Members who deliver an opt-out notification under this Plan will not be entitled to compensation from the Consultant Settlements or any further settlement with, or judgment that may be obtained against, the Non-Settling

Defendants in the Action.

CLAIMS VERIFICATION

- 13. The Administrator will review each Claim and verify that the Claimant is eligible for compensation from the Consultant Settlements, as follows:
 - a. For a Claimant claiming as a Class Member, the Administrator will be satisfied that the Claimant is a Class Member who bought Eligible Shares; and
 - b. For a Claimant claiming on behalf of a Class Member or a Class Member's estate, the Administrator will be satisfied that: (i) the Claimant has authority to act on behalf of the Class Member or the Class Member's estate in respect of financial affairs; (ii) the person or estate on whose behalf the claim was submitted was a Class Member who purchased Eligible Shares; and (iii) the Claimant has provided all supporting documentation required to make a Claim, or alternative supporting documentation as may be acceptable to the Administrator and Class Counsel.
- 14. In a situation not referred to above, the Administrator will determine verification steps by analogy, in consultation with Class Counsel where the Administrator believes necessary.
- 15. The Administrator will ensure that Claims are made only for Eligible Shares.

CLAIMS PROCESSING RULES

- 16. If a Claimant has made a claim for Eligible Shares in more than one Issuer, the Administrator will calculate the Authorized Claimant's Notional Entitlement for each Issuer in which the Claimant acquired Eligible Shares.
- 17. To calculate an Authorized Claimant's Notional Entitlement for their Eligible Shares in an Issuer, the Administrator will apply FIFO to match the purchase and sale of Eligible Shares in that Issuer.
- 18. The Administrator will first determine whether a Claimant has Net Loss for their Eligible Shares in an Issuer. A Claimant without Net Loss is ineligible to claim compensation under this Plan for their Eligible Shares in that Issuer.
- 19. If the Claimant has a Net Loss, they become an Authorized Claimant, and the Administrator will calculate their Notional Entitlement.
- 20. Eligible Shares transferred between accounts belonging to the same Claimant will only be considered Eligible Shares to calculate Net Loss if the Claimant first purchased those shares during the class period corresponding to the Issuer in which the Eligible Shares were purchased. Where Eligible Shares have been transferred between accounts belonging to the same Claimant, the Acquisition Expense will be calculated based on the price first paid by the Claimant for the Eligible Shares (i.e. the price paid before the transfer occurred).
- 21. The date of purchase or sale will be the trade date of the transaction, as opposed to the settlement date or the payment date.
- 22. The Administrator will account for any share consolidation or split that occurred after November 26, 2018, such that a Claimant's holdings for the calculations are completed in units equivalent to those traded during the relevant class period.

- 23. Where a Claimant acquired Eligible Shares from the exercise of share purchase warrants, the Acquisition Expense for the Eligible Shares so acquired will be equivalent to the total amount paid to exercise the share purchase warrants.
- Where a Claimant acquired Eligible Shares in connection with an acquisition of "units" under a distribution, the Acquisition Expense for those Eligible Shares will be equivalent to the total amount the Claimant paid to acquire the units.⁶
- 25. In determining Net Loss and Notional Entitlement, any transactions in Eligible Shares in a currency other than Canadian currency will be converted to Canadian currency based on the Bank of Canada noon exchange rate between the Canadian dollar and the foreign currency on the date the Administrator calculates the Notional Entitlement of the Authorized Claimant. All Notional Entitlements will be recorded in Canadian currency.

CALCULATION OF NOTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS

- 26. An Authorized Claimant's Notional Entitlement, for each Issuer for which an Authorized Claimant has a Net Loss, will be calculated as follows:
 - a. For Eligible Shares disposed of during the class period corresponding to the Issuer or during the ten (10) trading days after November 26, 2018, or the Resumption of Trading Period, as applicable, the amount equal to the number of Eligible Shares disposed of, multiplied by the difference between the Acquisition Expense and the Disposition Proceeds;
 - b. For Eligible Shares disposed of after December 10, 2018 or the Resumption of Trading Period, as applicable, the lesser of (i) and (ii)

⁶ For example, under Affinor's April 17, 2018 private placement, each Unit comprised one common share and one common share purchase warrant.

below:

- (i) the amount equal to the number of Eligible Shares disposed of, multiplied by the difference between the Acquisition Expense and the Disposition Proceeds; and
- (ii) the amount equal to the number of Eligible Shares disposed of, multiplied by the difference between the Acquisition Expense and *M*, where *M* equals the unadjusted volume weighted average closing price for the Issuer's shares on the CSE over the ten (10) next trading days for the Issuer's shares after November 26, 2018, or during the Resumption of Trading Period, as the case may be, as set out in Table 3.0 below:

Table 3.0

Issuer	M
Kootenay Zinc Corp.	\$0.054
Affinor Growers Inc.	\$0.048
Green 2 Blue Energy Corp.	\$0.065
Beleave Inc.	\$0.10
Marapharm Ventures Inc.	\$0.193
Cryptobloc Technologies Corp.	\$0.0117
BLOK Technologies Inc.	\$0.025
PreveCeutical Medical Inc.	\$0.07
Speakeasy Ltd.	\$0.294

_

⁷ Arrived at from the Resumption of Trading Period in Table 2.0.

New Point Exploration Corp.	\$0.0248
-----------------------------	----------

c. **For Eligible Shares** <u>still held when the Claim is made</u>, the amount equal to the number of Eligible Shares still held, multiplied by the difference between the Acquisition Expense and *M*;

COMPLETION OF CLAIMS & IRREGULAR CLAIMS

- 27. If, for any reason, a Claimant is unable to complete a Claim, then it may be completed by the Claimant's representative or a member of the Claimant's family.
- 28. Where a Claim has minor omissions or errors, the Administrator will correct such omissions or errors if the information necessary to do so is readily available to the Administrator.
- 29. If, after reviewing a Claim, the Administrator believes that it has unintentional errors that would, if not corrected, materially exaggerate a Claimant's Notional Entitlement, the Administrator may disallow the claim in its entirety or make such adjustments as are necessary so that a supportable Notional Entitlement is awarded to the Claimant.

CLAIMS PROCESSING TIMELINE & NOTICE TO CLAIMANTS OF INITIAL DETERMINATIONS

- 30. The Administrator will try to complete claims processing as soon as possible after the Claims Bar Deadline, and in any case, no later than 90 days after the Claims Bar Deadline.
- 31. Within 30 days of the Administrator's completion of claims processing, the Administrator will send to each Claimant, at the email or postal address provided

_

⁸ Arrived at from the Resumption of Trading Period in Table 2.0.

by the Claimant, a notice advising the Claimant:

- a. of the Administrator's Initial Determination;
- b. how to submit a request with the Administrator for reconsideration of the Administrator's Initial Determination; and
- c. any further information or documentation needed to cure any deficiency in the Claim.

REQUESTING RECONSIDERATION OF AN INITIAL DETERMINATION

- 32. A Claimant who wishes to request that the Administrator reconsider the Administrator's Initial Determination must follow the instructions in the notice, referred to in paragraph 31 above, for how to do so.
- 33. A request that the Administrator reconsider the Administrator's Initial Determination must be made within 45 days of the date of the notice advising the Administrator's Initial Determination.
- 34. If a Claimant does not, within 45 days, request the Administrator reconsider the Administrator's Initial Determination, the Claimant will be deemed to have accepted the Administrator's Initial Determination, which will become a final determination.
- 35. Where a Claimant files a request with the Administrator for reconsideration of the Administrator's Initial Determination, the Administrator will, within 45 days, review the Claimant's request and, if applicable, any further documentation and information given by the Claimant.
- 36. As soon as practicable following the Administrator's review of a request for reconsideration, and in any case not later than 14 days following the Administrator's completion of its review, the Administrator will advise the Claimant and Class Counsel

of its determination of the review and will send the Claimant, at the email or postal address provided by the Claimant, a notice specifying the outcome of the Administrator's review.

- Where a Claimant who has submitted to the Administrator a request for reconsideration of the Administrator's Initial Determination disagrees with the outcome of the Administrator's review, the Claimant may apply to the Court, in the Action, to request that the Court review and vary the Administrator's review determination.
- 38. An application filed in the Court to review and vary the Administrator's review determination must be brought on notice to the Administrator and Class Counsel within 21 days of the date of the notice advising of the Administrator's review determination.
- 39. Class Counsel and the Administrator will have standing to file evidence and make submissions on an application to the Court to review and vary the Administrator's review determination.
- 40. Any matter not contemplated above will be determined by analogy by the Administrator in consultation with Class Counsel.

CALCULATION OF COMPENSATION AMOUNT

Any Notional Entitlements for Eligible Shares in an Issuer for which there has been an Issuer Settlement shall be paid first from any funds remaining in the Issuer Settlement, as applicable, which are available for the payment of these Notional Entitlements. These Notional Entitlements shall be paid in full if the funds remaining in the applicable Issuer Settlement are sufficient to do so. If those funds are insufficient to do so, then the Administrator shall apply the remaining funds in the Issuer Settlement proportionately to the Notional Entitlements to be paid from those funds, which amounts shall constitute Issuer Settlement Payments under this Plan. The

unpaid amount of Notional Entitlement shall constitute the Authorized Claimant's Net Issuer Settlement Claim eligible for payment from the Net Consultant Settlements Fund pursuant to the provisions below.

- 42. All remaining Notional Entitlements for Eligible Shares in an Issuer determined under this Plan, and all Net Issuer Settlement Claims, shall be paid first from the Primary CS Payment Fund. All Notional Entitlements and Net Issuer Settlement Claims shall be paid in full if the Primary Payment CS Fund is sufficient to do so. If that Fund is insufficient to do so, then the Administrator shall apply the Primary CS Payment Fund pro rata in payment of the Notional Entitlements and Net Issuer Settlement Claims in such a manner that Authorized Claimants recover proportionately with respect to their Eligible Shares in an Issuer, having regard to any Issuer Settlement Payments paid or payable to the Authorized Claimants.
- All unpaid amounts of Notional Entitlements and Net Issuer Settlement Payments remaining after the Primary CS Payment Fund has been exhausted shall be paid from the Remaining CS Payment Fund, except that no payments shall be made from the Remaining CS Payment Fund in respect of Notional Entitlements in Speakeasy Cannabis Club Ltd. ("Speakeasy"). The Administrator shall allocate the CS Payment Fund pro rata in such a manner that Authorized Claimants recover proportionately with respect to their Eligible Shares in an Issuer, other than Speakeasy, having regard to any Issuer Settlement Payments paid or payable to the Authorized Claimants.
- 44. If an Authorized Claimant has made a Claim for losses concerning more than one Issuer, the Administrator may combine all amounts the Authorized Claimant is entitled to under this Plan and pay them to the Authorized Claimant as a single sum.
- 45. Compensation will be paid to Authorized Claimants in Canadian currency.
- 46. If one hundred and eighty (180) days from the date on which the Administrator finally distributes the Net Consultant Settlements Fund to Authorized

Claimants, there remains a positive balance in the Net Consultant Settlements Fund (whether due to tax refunds, uncashed cheques, or otherwise), the Administrator will, if feasible, reallocate such balance among the Authorized Claimants equitably and economically. Any payment shall be subject to paragraph 50.

47. By agreement between the Administrator and Class Counsel, any deadline in this Plan may be extended. Class Counsel and the Administrator will agree to extend a deadline(s) if, in their opinions, doing so will not adversely affect the efficient administration of the Settlement, and it is in the best interests of the Class to do so.

FRAUDULENT CLAIMS

- 48. The claims process is intended to be expeditious, cost-effective, and user-friendly to minimize the burden on Claimants. However, it is also designed to prevent fraud and abuse. Without reasonable grounds, the Administrator will assume Claimants act honestly and in good faith.
- 49. If the Administrator believes a claim is fraudulent or contains intentional errors that would materially exaggerate the Notional Entitlement to be awarded to a Claimant, then the Administrator must disallow the claim.

ADDITIONAL RULES

- 50. The Administrator will not pay Authorized Claimants whose pro rata entitlement under this Settlement Administration Plan is less than \$30.00. Such amounts will instead be allocated pro rata to other Authorized Claimants.
- A Claimant must notify the Administrator of any changes to his, her, or its email and postal address that the Claimant provides at the time of claim submission. The Administrator is not required to obtain forwarding email or postal address information independently, should a Claimant fail to notify the Administrator of any such change.

The Administrator will pay an Authorized Claimant by cheque to the address provided by the Authorized Claimant. If, for any reason, an Authorized Claimant does not cash a cheque within one hundred and eighty (180) days after the date on which the cheque was sent to the Authorized Claimant, the Authorized Claimant will forfeit the right to payment from the Net Consultant Settlements Fund, and the Authorized Claimant's entitlement shall be distributed following paragraph 46 of this Plan.

-END-